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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

Item 1. Financial Statements  

CenturyTel, Inc.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME  

(UNAUDITED)  
   
   

   
   
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  

   

   

   

   

    Three months    

    ended March 31,    

    2009      2008    

    

(Dollars, except per share 

amounts, and    

    shares in thousands)    
              
OPERATING REVENUES    $ 636,385       648,614   
                  
OPERATING EXPENSES                  
   Cost of services and products (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)      234,631       237,812   
   Selling, general and administrative      109,845       91,625   
   Depreciation and amortization      127,572       135,684   

Total operating expenses      472,048       465,121   
                  
OPERATING INCOME      164,337       183,493   
                  
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)                  
   Interest expense      (52,032 )     (50,122 ) 
   Other income (expense)      (1,818 )     8,663   

Total other income (expense)      (53,850 )     (41,459 ) 
                  
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE      110,487       142,034   
Income tax expense      43,107       53,028   
                  
NET INCOME      67,380       89,006   
Less:  Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests      (226 )     (246 ) 

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO CENTURYTEL, INC.    $ 67,154       88,760   

                  
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE    $ .67       .83   

                  
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE    $ .67       .82   

                  
DIVIDENDS PER COMMON SHARE    $ .70       .0675   

AVERAGE BASIC SHARES OUTSTANDING      99,126       106,142   

AVERAGE DILUTED SHARES OUTSTANDING      99,144       106,675   



   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   
   

3 



   

CenturyTel, Inc.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

(UNAUDITED)  

 

   
   
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

    Three months    

    ended March 31,    

    2009      2008    

    (Dollars in thousands)    
              
NET INCOME    $ 67,380       89,006   
                  
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAXES:                  

Unrealized holding loss related to marketable securities, net of  ($525) tax      -      (843 ) 
Derivative instruments:                  

  Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income, net of $67 and $67 tax      107       107   
Defined benefit pension and postretirement plans:                  

  Amortization of net actuarial loss and prior service credit included in net income, net of $4,224 and 

$68 tax      6,777       110   

  Net change in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax      6,884       (626 ) 
                  
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME      74,264       88,380   
                  

Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests      (226 )     (246 ) 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO CENTURYTEL, INC.    $ 74,038       88,134   
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CenturyTel, Inc.  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

(UNAUDITED)  
   

    March 31,      December 31,   

    2009      2008    

    (Dollars in thousands)    
ASSETS              
              
CURRENT ASSETS              

Cash and cash equivalents    $ 61,230       243,327   
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $15,750 and $16,290      194,194       230,292   
Materials and supplies, at average cost      8,781       8,862   
Other      56,425       72,926   

Total current assets      320,630       555,407   
                  
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT                  

Property, plant and equipment      8,900,683       8,868,451   
Accumulated depreciation      (6,079,113 )     (5,972,559 ) 

Net property, plant and equipment      2,821,570       2,895,892   
                  
GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS                  

Goodwill      4,015,674       4,015,674   
Other      775,939       787,222   

Total goodwill and other assets      4,791,613       4,802,896   
                  
TOTAL ASSETS    $ 7,933,813       8,254,195   

                  
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY                  
                  
CURRENT LIABILITIES                  

Current maturities of long-term debt    $ 20,148       20,407   
Accounts payable      125,218       135,086   
Accrued expenses and other liabilities                  

Salaries and benefits      48,366       99,648   
Income taxes      12,093       -  
Other taxes      50,726       44,137   
Interest      77,472       75,769   
Other      24,290       26,773   

Advance billings and customer deposits      56,549       56,570   

Total current liabilities      414,862       458,390   
                  
LONG-TERM DEBT      3,002,402       3,294,119   
                  
DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES      1,341,340       1,333,878   
                  
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY                  

CenturyTel, Inc.                  
Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 350,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding 100,579,306 

and 100,277,216 shares      100,579       100,277   



   
   
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

Paid-in capital      43,489       39,961   
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax      (116,605 )     (123,489 ) 
Retained earnings      3,143,036       3,146,255   
Preferred stock - non-redeemable      236       236   

Noncontrolling interests      4,474       4,568   

Total stockholders’ equity      3,175,209       3,167,808   

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    $ 7,933,813       8,254,195   
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CenturyTel, Inc.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

(UNAUDITED)  
   

    Three months    

    ended March 31,    

    2009      2008    

    (Dollars in thousands)    
              
OPERATING ACTIVITIES              
  Net income attributable to CenturyTel, Inc.    $ 67,154       88,760   
  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:                  

    Depreciation and amortization      127,572       135,684   
    Gain on asset disposition      -      (4,136 ) 
    Deferred income taxes      17,249       8,357   
    Share-based compensation      4,487       3,324   
    Income from unconsolidated cellular entity      (4,723 )     (3,306 ) 
    Distributions from unconsolidated cellular entity      4,088       6,363   
    Changes in current assets and current liabilities:                  
     Accounts receivable      36,098       4,520   
     Accounts payable      (9,868 )     (12,073 ) 
     Accrued income and other taxes      19,103       9,699   
     Other current assets and other current liabilities, net      (12,302 )     (14,423 ) 

  Retirement benefits      (23,497 )     5,474   
  Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation      (335 )     (19 ) 
  Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent assets      (306 )     (789 ) 
  Decrease in other noncurrent liabilities      (2,779 )     (2,790 ) 
  Other, net      8,226       5,565   

    Net cash provided by operating activities      230,167       230,210   
                  
INVESTING ACTIVITIES                  
  Payments for property, plant and equipment      (45,496 )     (54,739 ) 
  Deposit paid for wireless spectrum auction      -      (25,000 ) 
  Proceeds from sale of nonoperating investment      -      4,209   
  Other, net      128       (721 ) 

    Net cash used in investing activities      (45,368 )     (76,251 ) 
                  
FINANCING ACTIVITIES                  
  Net proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt      -      135,000   
  Payments of debt      (291,976 )     (245,058 ) 
  Proceeds from issuance of short-term debt      -      40,000   
  Proceeds from issuance of common stock      2,948       2,339   
  Repurchase of common stock      (4,026 )     (95,621 ) 
  Net proceeds from settlement of hedges      -      20,745   
  Cash dividends      (70,373 )     (7,261 ) 
  Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation      335       19   
  Other, net      (3,804 )     (985 ) 

    Net cash used in financing activities      (366,896 )     (150,822 ) 



   
   
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  
   
   
   
   
   
   

                  
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents      (182,097 )     3,137   
                  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period      243,327       34,402   
                  
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period    $ 61,230       37,539   

                  
Supplemental cash flow information:                  
  Income taxes paid    $ 851       44,152   

  Interest paid (net of capitalized interest of $327 and $726)    $ 50,002       54,467   
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CenturyTel, Inc.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  

(UNAUDITED)  
   

   
   

    Three months    

    ended March 31,    

    2009      2008    

    (Dollars in thousands)    
COMMON STOCK              

Balance at beginning of period    $ 100,277       108,492   
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestment, incentive and benefit plans      455       360   
Repurchase of common stock      -      (2,545 ) 
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdings      (153 )     (48 ) 

Balance at end of period      100,579       106,259   
                  
PAID-IN CAPITAL                  

Balance at beginning of period      39,961       91,147   
Issuance of common stock through dividend  reinvestment, incentive and benefit plans      2,493       1,979   
Repurchase of common stock      -      (91,407 ) 
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdings      (3,873 )     (1,621 ) 
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation      335       19   
Share-based compensation and other      4,573       3,169   

Balance at end of period      43,489       3,286   
                  
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF TAX                  

Balance at beginning of period      (123,489 )     (42,707 ) 
Net change in other comprehensive income (loss), net of reclassification adjustment, net of tax      6,884       (626 ) 

Balance at end of period      (116,605 )     (43,333 ) 
                  
RETAINED EARNINGS                  

Balance at beginning of period      3,146,255       3,245,302   
Net income attributable to CenturyTel, Inc.      67,154       88,760   
Cash dividends declared                  
       Common stock - $.70 and $.0675 per share, respectively      (70,370 )     (7,174 ) 
       Preferred stock      (3 )     (87 ) 

Balance at end of period      3,143,036       3,326,801   
                  
PREFERRED STOCK - NON-REDEEMABLE                  

Balance at beginning and end of period      236       6,971   
                  
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS                  

Balance at beginning of period      4,568       6,605   
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests      226       246   
Distributions attributable to noncontrolling interests      (320 )     (1,296 ) 

Balance at end of period      4,474       5,555   
                  
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY    $ 3,175,209       3,405,539   



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  
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CenturyTel, Inc.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

MARCH 31, 2009  

(UNAUDITED)  

 

 

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CenturyTel, Inc. and its majority-owned subsidiaries.  Certain information 

and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have 

been condensed or omitted pursuant to rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission; however, in the opinion of 

management, the disclosures made are adequate to make the information presented not misleading. The consolidated financial statements and 

footnotes included in this Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our 

annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.  

 

The financial information for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 has not been audited by independent certified public 

accountants; however, in the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary to present fairly the results of operations for the three-month 

periods have been included therein.  The results of operations for the first three months of the year are not necessarily indicative of the results of 

operations which might be expected for the entire year.  

 

 

 

On October 26, 2008, we entered into a definitive merger agreement to acquire Embarq Corporation (“EMBARQ”) in a stock-for-stock 

transaction.  Under the terms of the agreement, EMBARQ shareholders will receive 1.37 CenturyTel shares for each share of EMBARQ common 

stock they own at closing.  On December 31, 2008, EMBARQ had outstanding approximately 142.4 million shares of common stock and $5.7 

billion of long-term debt.  As of December 31, 2008, the two companies had a combined operating presence in 33 states with approximately 7.7 

million access lines and two million broadband customers.  Completion of the transaction is subject to the receipt of regulatory approvals, including 

approvals from the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) and certain state public service commissions, as well as other customary closing 

conditions.  Subject to these conditions, we anticipate closing this transaction in the second quarter of 2009.  

 

 

 

Goodwill and other intangible assets as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 were composed of the following:  
   

   

(1)  Basis of Financial Reporting  

(2)  Pending Acquisition  

(3)  Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets  

    March 31,      Dec. 31,    

    2009      2008    

    (Dollars in thousands)    
              
Goodwill    $ 4,015,674       4,015,674   

                  
Intangible assets subject to amortization                  

Customer base                  
Gross carrying amount    $ 181,309       181,309   
Accumulated amortization      (39,154 )     (35,026 ) 

Net carrying amount    $ 142,155       146,283   

                  
Other intangible assets not subject to amortization    $ 42,750       42,750   



   
Total amortization expense related to the intangible assets subject to amortization for the first quarter of 2009 was $4.1 million and is 

expected to be $16.5 million annually from 2009 through 2011, $16.1 million in 2012 and $16.0 million in 2013 (excluding the effects of any 

acquisitions consummated after the date hereof).  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

   
   

8 



   

 

We sponsor health care plans that provide postretirement benefits to qualified retired employees.  

 

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 included the following components:  

   

   
   

We contributed $3.2 million to our postretirement health care plan in the first quarter of 2009 and expect to contribute approximately $13 

million for the full year.  

   

   

 

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans for substantially all employees.  We also sponsored a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 

that provided certain officers with supplemental retirement, death and disability benefits.  In late February 2008, our board of directors approved 

certain actions related to our Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, including (i) the freezing of benefit accruals effective February 29, 2008 

and (ii) amending the plan to permit participants to receive in 2009 a lump sum distribution of the present value of their accrued plan benefits 

based on their election which occurred in the second quarter of 2008.  We also enhanced plan termination benefits by (i) crediting each active 

participant with three additional years of service and (ii) crediting each participant who was not in pay status under the plan with three additional 

years of age in connection with calculating the present value of any lump sum distribution.  We recorded an aggregate curtailment loss of 

approximately $8.2 million in 2008 (of which $580,000 was recognized in the first quarter of 2008) related to the above-described items.  In 

addition, upon the payment of the lump sum distributions in early 2009, we also recognized a settlement loss (which is included in selling, 

general and administrative expense) of approximately $7.7 million in the first quarter of 2009.  

 

Net periodic pension expense for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 included the following components:  
   

(4)  Postretirement Benefits  

    Three months    

    ended March 31,    

    2009      2008    

    (Dollars in thousands)    
              
Service cost    $ 1,209       1,255   
Interest cost      4,898       4,974   
Expected return on plan assets      (347 )     (599 ) 
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost      (886 )     (651 ) 

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost    $ 4,874       4,979   

(5)  Defined Benefit Retirement Plans  

    Three months    

    ended March 31,    

    2009      2008    

    (Dollars in thousands)    
              
Service cost    $ 3,493       4,689   
Interest cost      6,631       6,637   
Expected return on plan assets      (6,964 )     (8,749 ) 
Curtailment loss      -      580   
Settlement loss      7,711       -  
Net amortization and deferral      4,177       829   

Net periodic pension expense    $ 15,048       3,986   



   
   

The amount of the 2009 contribution to our pension plans will be determined based on a number of factors, including the results of the 

2009 actuarial valuation.  At this time, the amount of the 2009 contribution is not known.  Due principally to an accumulated positive “credit 

balance” under our principal pension plan, we expect our required minimum cash contributions for 2009 to be minimal.  Nonetheless, we may 

make discretionary contributions in 2009.  
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Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment”, requires us to recognize as compensation 

expense our cost of awarding employees with equity instruments by allocating the fair value of the award on the grant date over the period 

during which the employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award.  

 

We currently maintain programs which allow the Board of Directors, through its Compensation Committee, to grant incentives to certain 

employees and our outside directors in any one or a combination of several forms, including incentive and non-qualified stock options; stock 

appreciation rights; restricted stock; and performance shares.  As of March 31, 2009, we had reserved approximately 5.1 million shares of 

common stock which may be issued in connection with awards under our current incentive programs.  We also offer an Employee Stock 

Purchase Plan whereby employees can purchase our common stock at a 15% discount based on the lower of the beginning or ending stock price 

during recurring six-month periods stipulated in such program.  

 

Our outstanding restricted stock awards generally vest over a three- or five-year period (for employees) or a three-year period (for outside 

directors).   During the first quarter of 2009, 346,915 shares of restricted stock (substantially all of which have a three-year vesting period) were 

granted to employees at an average grant date fair value of $26.10 per share.   As of March 31, 2009, there were 1,250,940 shares of nonvested 

restricted stock outstanding at an average grant date fair value of $34.06 per share.  

 

Our outstanding stock options have been granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of CenturyTel’s shares at the date of 

grant.  Our outstanding options generally have a three-year vesting period and all of them expire ten years after the date of grant.  The fair value 

of each stock option award is estimated as of the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model.  No options were granted to 

employees during the first quarter of 2009.  

 

As of March 31, 2009, outstanding and exercisable stock options were as follows:  
   

______________  
*  Includes only those options with intrinsic value (options where the exercise price is below the market price).  

   

The total compensation cost for all share-based payment arrangements for the first quarters of 2009 and 2008 was $4.5 million and $3.3 

million, respectively.  As of March 31, 2009, there was $39.9 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the share-based 

payment arrangements, which we expect to recognize over a weighted-average period of 3.1 years.  

 

 

Our effective income tax rate was 39.1% and 37.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008, respectively.   The 

lump sum distributions attributable to certain executive officers that were made in connection with discontinuing the Supplemental Executive 

Retirement Plan (see Note 5) are non-deductible for income tax purposes pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m) limitations.  Such 

treatment resulted in the recognition of approximately $6.7 million of income tax expense in the first quarter of 2009 above amounts that would 

have been recognized had such payments been deductible for income tax purposes.  Such increase in income tax expense was partially offset by 

a $5.8 million reduction in income tax expense caused by a reduction to our deferred tax asset valuation allowance associated with state net 

operating loss carryforwards due to a law change in one of our operating states that we believe will allow us to utilize our net operating loss 

carryforwards in the future.  Prior to the law change, such net operating loss carryforwards were fully reserved as it was more likely than not that 

(6)  Stock-based Compensation  

                Average          

                remaining      Aggregate    
    Number      Average      contractual      intrinsic    

    of options      price      

term (in 

years)      value*    
                          
Outstanding      3,503,901     $ 36.66       5.5     $ 134,000   
Exercisable      3,041,259     $ 35.35       5.1     $ 134,000   

(7)  Income Taxes  



these carryforwards would not be utilized prior to expiration.  
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We are an integrated communications company engaged primarily in providing an array of communications services to our customers, 

including local exchange, long distance, Internet access and broadband services.  We strive to maintain our customer relationships by, among 

other things, bundling our service offerings to provide our customers with a complete offering of integrated communications services.  Our 

operating revenues for our products and services include the following components:  

 

   
   

We derive our voice revenues by providing local exchange telephone and retail long distance services to our customers in our local 

exchange service areas.  

 

We derive our network access revenues primarily from (i) providing services to various carriers and customers in connection with the use 

of our facilities to originate and terminate their interstate and intrastate voice transmissions and (ii) receiving universal support funds which 

allows us to recover a portion of our costs under federal and state cost recovery mechanisms.  

 

We derive our data revenues primarily by providing high-speed Internet access services (“DSL”) and data transmission services over 

special circuits and private lines in our local exchange service areas.  

 

Our fiber transport and CLEC revenues include revenues from our fiber transport, competitive local exchange carrier and security 

monitoring businesses.  

 

We derive other revenues primarily by (i) leasing, selling, installing and maintaining customer premise telecommunications equipment 

and wiring, (ii) providing billing and collection services for third parties, (iii) participating in the publication of local directories and (iv) offering 

our video services, as well as other new product offerings.  

 

We are required to contribute to several universal service fund programs and generally include a surcharge amount on our customers’ bills 

which is designed to recover our contribution costs.  Such amounts are reflected on a gross basis in our statement of income (included in both 

operating revenues and expenses) and aggregated approximately $10 million for both the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008.  

 

 

 

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 (revised), 

“Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141(R)”).  Under SFAS 141(R), an acquiring entity is required to recognize all of the assets acquired and 

liabilities assumed in a transaction at the acquisition date fair value with limited exceptions.  SFAS 141(R) also changes the accounting treatment 

for certain specific items, including acquisition costs, acquired contingent liabilities, restructuring costs, deferred tax asset valuation allowances 

and income tax uncertainties after the acquisition date.  SFAS 141(R) is effective for us for all business combinations for which the acquisition 

(8)  Business Segments  

    Three months    

    ended March 31,    

    2009      2008    

    (Dollars in thousands)    
              
Voice    $ 209,918       220,480   
Network access      192,844       208,698   
Data      139,937       126,772   
Fiber transport and CLEC      41,498       39,633   
Other      52,188       53,031   

Total operating revenues    $ 636,385       648,614   

(9)  Recent Accounting Pronouncements  



date is on or after January 1, 2009.  We will account for our pending acquisition of EMBARQ using the guidance of SFAS 141

(R).  During the first quarter of 2009, we incurred approximately $6.9 million of acquisition related expenses related to our pending acquisition 

of EMBARQ.  Pursuant to SFAS 141(R), such costs are required to be expensed as incurred and are reflected in selling, general and 

administrative expense in our first quarter 2009 consolidated statement of income.  
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In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FSP EITF 03-6-1, “Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-

Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities”.  Based on this pronouncement, we have concluded that our outstanding non-vested 

restricted stock is a participating security and therefore should be included in the earnings allocation in computing earnings per share using the 

two-class method.  The pronouncement is effective for us beginning in first quarter 2009 and requires us to recast our previously reported 

earnings per share using the methodology prescribed in FSP EITF 03-6-1.  Our previously reported diluted earnings per share for the first quarter 

of 2008 ($.83 per share) has been recast using the guidance of FSP EITF 03-6-1 ($.82 per share).  If our diluted earnings per share would have 

been calculated using the provisions of FSP EITF 03-6-1 for the full year 2008, our diluted earnings per share would have been $3.52 per share 

as compared to $3.56 per share.  

 

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 160, 

“Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements – an Amendment of ARB No. 51” (“SFAS 160”).  SFAS 160 requires 

noncontrolling interests to be recognized as equity in the consolidated balance sheets.  In addition, net income attributable to such noncontrolling 

interests is required to be included in consolidated net income.  SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 

2008.  Our financial statements as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2009 reflect our noncontrolling interests as prescribed by SFAS 

160.  Prior periods have been adjusted to reflect this presentation.  

 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”) defines fair value, establishes a 

framework for measuring fair value and expands the disclosures about fair value measurements required or permitted under other accounting 

pronouncements.  SFAS 157 establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value.  These tiers 

include: Level 1 (defined as observable inputs such as quoted market prices in active markets); Level 2 (defined as inputs other than quoted 

prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable); and Level 3 (defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market 

data exists).  

 

As of March 31, 2009, we held life insurance contracts with cash surrender value that are required to be measured at fair value on a 

recurring basis.  The following table depicts these assets held and the related tier designation pursuant to SFAS 157.  

   

   

   

 

In Barbrasue Beattie and James Sovis, on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated, v. CenturyTel, Inc. , filed on October 28, 

2002, in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan (Case No. 02-10277), the plaintiffs allege that we unjustly and 

unreasonably billed customers for inside wire maintenance services, and seek unspecified monetary damages and injunctive relief under various 

legal theories on behalf of a purported class of over two million customers in our telephone markets.  On March 10, 2006, the Court certified a class 

of plaintiffs and issued a ruling that the billing descriptions we used for these services during an approximately 18-month period between October 

2000 and May 2002 were legally insufficient.  Our appeal of this class certification decision was denied.  Our preliminary analysis indicates that we 

billed less than $10 million for inside wire maintenance services under the billing descriptions and time periods specified in the District Court ruling 

described above.  Should other billing descriptions be determined to be inadequate or if claims are allowed for additional time periods, the amount 

of our potential exposure could increase significantly above amounts previously accrued.  The Court’s order does not specify the award of damages, 

the scope and amounts of which, if any, remain subject to additional fact-finding and resolution of what we believe are valid defenses to plaintiff’

claims.  Accordingly, we currently cannot reasonably estimate the maximum amount of possible loss if this matter proceeds to litigation.  However, 

    Balance                      

Description    

March 31, 

2009      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3    

    (Dollars in thousands)    
                          
Cash surrender value of life insurance 

contracts    $ 96,544       96,544       -      -  
                                  

(10)  Commitments and Contingencies  



we do not believe that the ultimate outcome of this matter will have a material adverse effect on our financial position or on-going results of 

operations.  

 

From time to time, we are involved in other proceedings incidental to our business, including administrative hearings of state public utility 

commissions relating primarily to rate making, actions relating to employee claims, occasional grievance hearings before labor regulatory 

agencies and miscellaneous third party tort actions.   The outcome of these other proceedings is not predictable.  However, we do not believe that 

the ultimate resolution of these other proceedings, after considering available insurance coverage, will have a material adverse effect on our 

financial position, results of operations or cash flows.  
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On January 23, 2009, EMBARQ announced that it had entered into an amendment to its Credit Agreement dated as of May 10, 

2006.  Amendment No. 1 will become effective only upon the consummation of the pending merger between a subsidiary of CenturyTel and 

EMBARQ, and the satisfaction of other conditions specified in Amendment No. 1.  Amendment No. 1 effects a waiver of the event of default 

that would have arisen under the Credit Agreement solely as a result of the merger and enables the Credit Agreement, as amended, to remain in 

place after the merger is completed.  Previously, in connection with the merger agreement dated October 26, 2008, we had entered into a 

commitment letter with various lenders which provided for an $800 million bridge facility that would be available to, among other things, 

refinance borrowings under the Credit Agreement in the event a waiver of the event of default arising from the consummation of the merger 

could not have been obtained and other financing was unavailable.  On January 23, 2009, we terminated the commitment letter.  Upon entering 

into and terminating the commitment letter, we paid an aggregate of $8.0 million to the lenders.  Such amount has been reflected as an expense 

(in Other income (expense)) in the first quarter of 2009.  

 

On January 27, 2009, EMBARQ stockholders approved the proposed merger and CenturyTel shareholders approved the issuance of 

CenturyTel common stock to EMBARQ shareholders in connection with the proposed merger.  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

(11)  Other Events  
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Item 2.  

CenturyTel, Inc.  
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF  

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

Overview  

 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ("MD&A") included herein should be read in 

conjunction with MD&A and the other information included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008. The 

results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2009 are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations which might be 

expected for the entire year.  

 

We are an integrated communications company engaged primarily in providing an array of communications services to customers in 25 

states.  We currently derive our revenues from providing (i) local exchange and long distance voice services, (ii) network access services, (iii) 

data services, which includes high-speed Internet service (“DSL”), as well as special access and private line services, (iv) fiber transport, 

competitive local exchange and security monitoring services and (v) other related services.   For additional information on our revenue sources, 

see Note 8.  

 

On October 26, 2008, we entered into a definitive merger agreement to acquire Embarq Corporation (“EMBARQ”) in a stock-for-stock 

transaction.  Under the terms of the agreement, EMBARQ shareholders will receive 1.37 CenturyTel shares for each share of EMBARQ 

common stock they own at closing.  On December 31, 2008, EMBARQ had outstanding approximately 142.4 million shares of common stock 

and $5.7 billion of long-term debt.  As of December 31, 2008, the two companies had a combined operating presence in 33 states with 

approximately 7.7 million access lines and two million broadband customers.  Completion of the transaction is subject to the receipt of 

regulatory approvals, including approvals from the Federal Communications Commission and certain state public service commissions, as well 

as other customary closing conditions.  Subject to these conditions, we anticipate closing this transaction in the second quarter of 2009.  During 

the first quarter of 2009, we incurred approximately $6.9 million of acquisition related costs associated with our pending acquisition of 

EMBARQ.  Such costs are reflected in selling, general and administrative expense in our first quarter 2009 consolidated statement of 

income.  As discussed in Note 11, during the first quarter of 2009 we incurred an $8.0 million pre-tax charge (which is reflected in Other income 

(expense)) associated with our $800 million bridge facility that we obtained in connection with entering into the EMBARQ merger agreement.  

 

As discussed further in Note 5, upon the payment of lump sum distributions in early 2009 related to our Supplemental Executive 

Retirement Plan, we recognized a settlement loss of approximately $7.7 million in the first quarter of 2009 (such amount is reflected in selling, 

general and administrative expense).  In addition, due to Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m) limitations, a portion of the lump sum 

distributions made in the first quarter of 2009 are not deductible for income tax purposes and thus increased our effective income tax rate.  Such 

increase in our effective tax rate was partially offset by a reduction to our deferred tax asset valuation allowance associated with state net 

operating loss carryforwards.  See “Income Tax Expense” below for additional information.  

 

During the last several years (exclusive of acquisitions and certain non-recurring favorable adjustments), we have experienced revenue 

declines in our voice and network access revenues primarily due to the loss of access lines and minutes of use.  In an attempt to mitigate these 

declines, we hope to, among other things, (i) promote long-term relationships with our customers through bundling of integrated services, (ii) 

provide new services, such as video and wireless broadband, and other additional services that may become available in the future due to 

advances in technology, wireless spectrum sales by the Federal Communications Commission or improvements in our infrastructure, (iii) 

provide our broadband and premium services to a higher percentage of our customers, (iv) pursue acquisitions of additional communications 

properties if available at attractive prices, (v) increase usage of our networks and (vi) market our products to new customers.  
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In addition to historical information, this management’s discussion and analysis includes certain forward-looking statements that are 

based on current expectations only, and are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties and assumptions, many of which are beyond our 

control.  Actual events and results may differ materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected if one or more of these risks or 

uncertainties materialize, or if underlying assumptions prove incorrect.  Factors that could affect actual results include but are not limited 

to:  the timing, success and overall effects of competition from a wide variety of competitive providers; the risks inherent in rapid technological 

change; the effects of ongoing changes in the regulation of the communications industry (including the FCC’s proposed rules regarding 

intercarrier compensation and the Universal Service Fund described in our prior filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission 

(“SEC”)); our ability to effectively adjust to changes in the communications industry; our ability to successfully complete our pending merger 

with EMBARQ, including timely receiving all regulatory approvals and realizing the anticipated benefits of the transaction; our ability to 

effectively manage our expansion opportunities, including successfully integrating newly-acquired businesses into our operations and retaining 

and hiring key personnel; possible changes in the demand for, or pricing of, our products and services; our ability to successfully introduce new 

product or service offerings on a timely and cost-effective basis; our continued access to credit markets on favorable terms; our ability to collect 

our receivables from financially troubled communications companies; our ability to pay a $2.80 per common share dividend annually, which 

may be affected by changes in our cash requirements, capital spending plans, cash flows or financial position; our ability to successfully 

negotiate collective bargaining agreements on reasonable terms without work stoppages; the effects of adverse weather; other risks referenced 

from time to time in this report or other of our filings with the SEC; and the effects of more general factors such as changes in interest rates, in 

tax rates, in accounting policies or practices, in operating, medical or administrative costs, in general market, labor or economic conditions, or 

in legislation, regulation or public policy.  These and other uncertainties related to our business and our pending acquisition of EMBARQ are 

described in greater detail in Item 1A to our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, as updated and supplemented by our subsequent 

SEC reports. You should be aware that new factors may emerge from time to time and it is not possible for us to identify all such factors nor can 

we predict the impact of each such factor on the business or the extent to which any one or more factors may cause actual results to differ from 

those reflected in any forward-looking statements.  You are further cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, 

which speak only as of the date of this report.  We undertake no obligation to update any of our forward-looking statements for any reason.  

   

   

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

 

Three Months Ended March 31, 2009 Compared  

to Three Months Ended March 31, 2008  

 

Net income attributable to CenturyTel, Inc. was $67.2 million and $88.8 million for the first quarter of 2009 and 2008, 

respectively.  Diluted earnings per share for the first quarter of 2009 and 2008 was $.67 and $.82, respectively.   The decline in the number of 

average diluted shares outstanding is primarily attributable to share repurchases after March 31, 2008.  

 

    Three months    

    ended March 31,    

    2009      2008    

    

(Dollars, except per share 

amounts,    

    and shares in thousands)    
              
Operating income    $ 164,337       183,493   
Interest expense      (52,032 )     (50,122 ) 
Other income (expense)      (1,818 )     8,663   
Income tax expense      (43,107 )     (53,028 ) 

Net income      67,380       89,006   
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests      (226 )     (246 ) 

Net income attributable to CenturyTel, Inc.    $ 67,154       88,760   

                  



   
   

Operating income decreased $19.2 million (10.4%) due to a $12.2 million (1.9%) decrease in operating revenues and a $6.9 million 

(1.5%) increase in operating expenses.  

   

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   
   

Basic earnings per share    $ .67       .83   

                  
Diluted earnings per share    $ .67       .82   

                  
Average basic shares outstanding      99,126       106,142   

                  
Average diluted shares outstanding      99,144       106,675   
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Operating Revenues  
   

   
 

The $10.6 million (4.8%) decrease in voice revenues is primarily due to (i) a $7.3 million decrease due to a 6.5% decline in the average 

number of access lines and (ii) a $3.1 million decrease in custom calling feature revenues primarily due to the continued migration of customers 

to bundled service offerings at a lower effective rate.  

 

Access lines declined 31,700 (1.6%) during the first quarter of 2009 compared to a decline of 27,400 (1.3%) during the first quarter of 

2008.  We believe the decline in the number of access lines during 2009 and 2008 is primarily due to the displacement of traditional wireline 

telephone services by other competitive services and recent economic conditions.  Based on our current retention initiatives, we estimate that our 

access line loss will be between 5.7% and 6.7% in 2009.  

 

Network access revenues decreased $15.9 million (7.6%) in the first quarter of 2009 primarily due to (i) an $8.9 million decrease as a 

result of lower intrastate revenues due to a reduction in intrastate minutes (principally due to the loss of access lines and the displacement of 

minutes by wireless, electronic mail and other optional calling services); (ii) a $3.9 million decrease in interstate revenues primarily due to the 

partial recovery of lower operating costs through revenue sharing arrangements and return on rate base; and (iii) a $3.5 million reduction in 

revenues from the federal Universal Service Fund primarily due to an increase in the nationwide average cost per loop factor used by the Federal 

Communications Commission to allocate funds among all recipients.  We believe that intrastate minutes will continue to decline in 2009, 

although we cannot precisely estimate the magnitude of such decrease.  

 

Data revenues increased $13.2 million (10.4%) substantially due to an $11.0 million increase in DSL-related revenues primarily due to 

growth in the number of DSL customers.  

 

Fiber transport and CLEC revenues increased $1.9 million (4.7%) primarily due to a $3.2 million increase in revenues of our incumbent 

fiber transport business.  Such increase was partially offset by a $1.5 million decrease in CLEC revenues due to the sales of six CLEC markets 

that were consummated in the second and third quarters of 2008.  

 

Other revenues decreased $843,000 (1.6%) primarily due to a $1.3 million decrease in directory revenues.  

   

   

Operating Expenses  

 

    Three months    

    ended March 31,    

    2009      2008    

    (Dollars in thousands)    
              
Voice    $ 209,918       220,480   
Network access      192,844       208,698   
Data      139,937       126,772   
Fiber transport and CLEC      41,498       39,633   
Other      52,188       53,031   
    $ 636,385       648,614   

    Three months    

    ended March 31,    

    2009      2008    

    (Dollars in thousands)    
              



   
Cost of services and products decreased $3.2 million (1.3%) primarily due to a $3.3 million decrease in plant operations expenses 

primarily due to lower maintenance and repairs costs and a $2.4 million decrease in CLEC expenses primarily due to a reduction in costs due to 

the above-described sale of six CLEC markets.  Such decreases were partially offset by a $4.0 million increase in DSL-related expenses due to 

growth in the number of DSL customers.  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

   
   

Cost of services and products (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)    $ 234,631       237,812   
Selling, general and administrative      109,845       91,625   
Depreciation and amortization      127,572       135,684   
    $ 472,048       465,121   
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Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $18.2 million (19.9%) primarily due to (i) a $7.7 million settlement charge related 

to our Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (see Note 5); (ii) $6.9 million of acquisition related costs associated with our pending acquisition 

of EMBARQ and (iii) a $4.9 million increase in bad debt expense.  

 

Depreciation and amortization decreased $8.1 million (6.0%) primarily due a $10.6 million reduction in depreciation expense due to 

certain assets becoming fully depreciated.  Such decrease was partially offset by a $4.2 million increase due to higher levels of plant in service.  

 

 

Interest Expense  

 

Interest expense increased $1.9 million (3.8%) in the first quarter of 2009 compared to the first quarter of 2008 primarily due to a $3.8 

million increase as a result of an increase in average debt outstanding which was partially offset by a $1.4 million reduction due to lower average 

interest rates.  

 

 

Other Income (Expense)  

 

Other income (expense) includes the effects of certain items not directly related to our core operations, including gains and losses from 

nonoperating asset dispositions and impairments, our share of income from our 49% interest in a cellular partnership, interest income and 

allowance for funds used during construction.  Other income (expense) was $(1.8) million for the first quarter of 2009 compared to $8.7 million 

for the first quarter of 2008.  Included in the first quarter of 2009 is an $8.0 million charge associated with our $800 million bridge credit facility 

(see Note 11 for additional information).  Included in the first quarter of 2008 is a pre-tax gain of approximately $4.1 million from the sale of a 

nonoperating investment and a $3.4 million pre-tax charge related to terminating all of our existing derivative instruments in the first quarter of 

2008.  Our share of income from our 49% interest in a cellular partnership increased $1.4 million in first quarter 2009 compared to first quarter 

2008.  

 

 

Income Tax Expense  

 

Our effective income tax rate was 39.1% and 37.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008, respectively.   The 

lump sum distributions attributable to certain executive officers that were made in connection with discontinuing the Supplemental Executive 

Retirement Plan (see Note 5) are non-deductible for income tax purposes pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m) limitations.  Such 

treatment resulted in the recognition of approximately $6.7 million of income tax expense in the first quarter of 2009 above amounts that would 

have been recognized had such payments been deductible for income tax purposes.  Such increase in income tax expense was partially offset by 

a $5.8 million reduction in income tax expense caused by a reduction to our deferred tax asset valuation allowance associated with state net 

operating loss carryforwards due to a law change in one of our operating states that we believe will allow us to utilize our net operating loss 

carryforwards in the future.  Prior to the law change, such net operating loss carryforwards were fully reserved as it was more likely than not that 

these carryforwards would not be utilized prior to expiration.  

 

 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES  

 

 

Excluding cash used for acquisitions, we rely on cash provided by operations to fund our operating and capital expenditures.  During the 

last few months of 2008, we borrowed against our long-term revolving credit facility and held excess cash to provide us flexibility in 

the challenging economic environment.  As a result, our working capital position was positive as of December 31, 2008.  During the first quarter 

of 2009, we repaid a portion of these borrowings which has resulted in a negative working capital position as of March 31, 2009, which is more 

representative of our typical working capital position.   Our operations have historically provided a stable source of cash flow which has helped 

us continue our long-term program of capital improvements.  
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Net cash provided by operating activities was $230.2 million during both the first three months of 2009 and the first three months of 

2008.  Payments for income taxes decreased from $44.2 million during the first three months of 2008 to $851,000 during the first three months 

of 2009 due to overpayments of 2008 taxes that enabled us to lower our first quarter 2009 estimated tax payments.  The lump sum distributions 

associated with the discontinuance of the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan were paid in early 2009 and aggregated approximately $37 

million.  Our accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows identify major differences between net income and net cash provided by 

operating activities for each of these periods.  For additional information relating to our operations, see Results of Operations.  

 

Net cash used in investing activities was $45.4 million and $76.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, 

respectively.  Payments for property, plant and equipment were $45.5 million in the first quarter of 2009 and $54.7 million in the first quarter of 

2008.  Included in our first quarter 2009 capital expenditures was approximately $6.4 million related to the integration of EMBARQ.  Our 

budgeted capital expenditures for 2009 are expected to be between $280-300 million, excluding nonrecurring capital expenditures expected to 

arise out of our pending EMBARQ acquisition.  

 

During 2008, we paid an aggregate of approximately $149 million (of which $25 million was paid as a deposit in the first quarter of 2008 and 

the remainder was paid in April 2008) for 69 licenses in the Federal Communications Commission’s (“FCC”) auction of 700 megahertz (“MHz”) 

wireless spectrum.  The 700 MHz spectrum is not expected to be cleared for usage until mid-2009.  We are still in the planning stages regarding the 

use of this spectrum.  However, based on our preliminary analysis, we are considering developing wireless voice and data service capabilities based 

on equipment using LTE (Long-Term Evolution) technology.  Given that this equipment is not expected to be commercially available until 2010, 

we do not expect our deployment to result in any material impact to our capital and operating budgets for 2009.  

 

Net cash used in financing activities was $366.9 million during the first three months of 2009 compared to $150.8 million during the first 

three months of 2008.  We made $292.0 million of debt payments (substantially all of which related to our revolving credit facility) in the first 

quarter of 2009 primarily from cash on hand.  In the first quarter of 2008, we paid our $240 million Series F Senior Notes at maturity primarily 

using borrowings from our credit facility.  In accordance with previously announced stock repurchase programs, we repurchased 2.6 million 

shares (for $95.6 million) in the first quarter of 2008.  We have suspended our current share repurchase program pending completion of our 

acquisition of EMBARQ.  

 

In June 2008, our Board of Directors determined to (i) increase our annual cash dividend to $2.80 from $.27 per share and (ii) declare a one

time dividend of $.6325 per share, which was paid in July 2008, effectively adjusting the total second quarter dividend to the new $.70 quarterly 

dividend rate. We plan to continue our current dividend practice through the consummation of the EMBARQ merger.  Following the closing of the 

EMBARQ merger, we expect to continue our current dividend practice and resume share repurchases, subject to our intention to maintain 

investment grade credit ratings on our senior debt and any other factors that our board in its discretion deems relevant.  

 

In the first quarter of 2008, we received a net cash settlement of approximately $20.7 million from the termination of all of our existing 

derivative instruments.  See “Market Risk” below for additional information concerning the termination of these derivatives.  

 

During 2008, we suffered a substantial loss on our pension plan assets.  If our actual return on plan assets continues to be lower than our 

assumed rate of return, we will be required to contribute additional funds to our pension plan after 2009.  For further information, see Part I, Item 

3, of this report.  

 

As discussed in Note 2, we have entered into a definitive agreement to merge with Embarq Corporation.  Assuming we timely receive all 

regulatory approvals (and all other closing conditions are met), we hope to consummate the merger in the second quarter of 2009.  In connection 

with the closing, we intend to finance our merger transaction expenses with (i) available cash of the combined company and (ii) proceeds from 

CenturyTel’s or EMBARQ’s existing revolving credit facilities.  As previously announced, EMBARQ amended its credit facility in January 

2009 to enable the facility to remain in place as an $800 million unsecured revolving credit facility after the completion of the pending merger 

through May 2011.  The amendment will take effect only upon the completion of the merger and the satisfaction of certain other conditions 

specified in the amendment.  See Note 11 for additional information.  

   



We have available a five-year, $728 million revolving credit facility which expires in December 2011.  Up to $150 million of the credit 

facility can be used for letters of credit, which reduces the amount available for other extensions of credit.  Available borrowings under our credit 

facility are also effectively reduced by any outstanding borrowings under our commercial paper program.  Our commercial paper program 

borrowings are effectively limited to the total amount available under our credit facility.  As of March 31, 2009, we had approximately $276 

million outstanding under our credit facility and no amounts outstanding under our commercial paper program.  
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OTHER MATTERS  

 

Accounting for the Effects of Regulation  

 

We currently account for our regulated telephone operations (except for the properties acquired from Verizon in 2002) in accordance with 

the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” (“SFAS 

71”).  Actions by regulators can provide reasonable assurance of the recognition of an asset, reduce or eliminate the value of an asset and impose 

a liability on a regulated enterprise.  Such regulatory assets and liabilities are required to be recorded and, accordingly, reflected in the balance 

sheet of an entity subject to SFAS 71.  We continuously monitor the ongoing applicability of SFAS 71 to our regulated telephone operations due 

to the changing regulatory, competitive and legislative environments.  As of March 31, 2009, we believe that SFAS 71 still applies.  

 

In September 2008, we filed a petition with the FCC to convert our remaining rate-of-return study areas to price cap regulation and, to the 

extent necessary, requested limited waivers of certain pricing and universal service high-cost support rules related to our election.  Such petition 

to convert to price cap regulation was approved in April 2009 and will be effective as of July 1, 2009.  As a result, we plan to discontinue the 

accounting requirements of SFAS 71 as of July 1, 2009.  We are currently evaluating whether our pending EMBARQ acquisition would require 

us to discontinue the accounting requirements of  SFAS 71 as of the merger closing date if that date precedes July 1, 2009.    

   

Upon the discontinuance of SFAS 71, implementation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 101 ("SFAS 101"), 

"Regulated Enterprises  - Accounting for the Discontinuance of Application of FASB Statement No. 71," will require the write-off of previously 

established regulatory assets and liabilities.  Depreciation rates of certain assets established by regulatory authorities for our telephone operations 

subject to SFAS 71 have historically included a component for removal costs in excess of the related salvage value.  Notwithstanding the 

adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143”), SFAS 71 

requires us to continue to reflect this accumulated liability for removal costs in excess of salvage value even though there is no legal obligation 

to remove the assets.  Therefore, we did not adopt the provisions of SFAS 143 for our telephone operations subject to SFAS 71.  SFAS 101 

further provides that the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are to be adjusted only to the extent the assets are impaired and that 

impairment shall be judged in the same manner as for nonregulated enterprises.  

 

Our consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2009 included regulatory liabilities of approximately $220 million related to estimated 

removal costs embedded in accumulated depreciation (as described above).  Upon the discontinuance of SFAS 71, such amount (on an after-tax 

basis) will be reflected as an extraordinary gain on our consolidated statement of income for the period in which the discontinuance takes effect.  

 

When our regulated operations cease to qualify for the application of SFAS 71, we do not expect to record an impairment charge related 

to the carrying value of the property, plant and equipment of our regulated telephone operations.  Additionally, upon the discontinuance of SFAS 

71, we will be required to revise the lives of our property, plant and equipment to reflect the estimated useful lives of the assets.  We do not 

expect such revisions in asset lives, or the elimination of other regulatory assets and liabilities, to have a material unfavorable impact on our 

results of operations.  Upon the discontinuance of SFAS 71, we also will be required to eliminate certain intercompany transactions with 

regulated affiliates that currently are not eliminated under the application of SFAS 71.  For the first quarter of 2009, approximately $53 million 

of revenues (and an equal amount of corresponding costs) would have been eliminated had we not been subject to the provisions of SFAS 

71.  For regulatory purposes, the accounting and reporting of our telephone subsidiaries will not be affected by the discontinued application of 

SFAS 71.  
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Item 3.  

CenturyTel, Inc.  
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE  

DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK  

 

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates on our long-term debt obligations.  We have estimated our market risk using 

sensitivity analysis.  Market risk is defined as the potential change in the fair value of a fixed-rate debt obligation due to a hypothetical adverse 

change in interest rates.  Fair value on long-term debt obligations is determined based on a discounted cash flow analysis, using the rates and 

maturities of these obligations compared to terms and rates currently available in the long-term financing markets.  The results of the sensitivity 

analysis used to estimate market risk are presented below, although the actual results may differ from these estimates.  

 

At March 31, 2009, the fair value of our long-term debt was estimated to be $2.6 billion based on the overall weighted average rate of our 

debt of 6.2% and an overall weighted maturity of 7 years compared to terms and rates currently available in long-term financing 

markets.  Market risk is estimated as the potential decrease in fair value of our long-term debt resulting from a hypothetical increase of 62 basis 

points in interest rates (ten percent of our overall weighted average borrowing rate).  Such an increase in interest rates would result in 

approximately a $73.2 million decrease in fair value of our long-term debt at March 31, 2009.  As of March 31, 2009, approximately 91% of our 

long-term and short-term debt obligations were fixed rate.  

 

We seek to maintain a favorable mix of fixed and variable rate debt in an effort to limit interest costs and cash flow volatility resulting 

from changes in rates.  From time to time over the past several years, we have used derivative instruments to (i) lock-in or swap our exposure to 

changing or variable interest rates for fixed interest rates or (ii) to swap obligations to pay fixed interest rates for variable interest rates.  We have 

established policies and procedures for risk assessment and the approval, reporting and monitoring of derivative instrument activities.  We do not 

hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.  Management periodically reviews our exposure to interest rate 

fluctuations and implements strategies to manage the exposure.  

 

In January 2008, we terminated all of our existing “fixed to variable” interest rate swaps associated with the $500 million principal 

amount of our Series L senior notes, due 2012.  In connection with the termination of these derivatives, we received aggregate cash payments of 

approximately $25.6 million, which has been reflected as a premium of the associated long-term debt and is being amortized as a reduction of 

interest expense through 2012 using the effective interest method.  In addition, in January 2008, we also terminated certain other derivatives that 

were not deemed to be effective hedges.  Upon the termination of these derivatives, we paid an aggregate of approximately $4.9 million (and 

recorded a $3.4 million pre-tax charge in the first quarter of 2008 related to the settlement of these derivatives).  As of March 31, 2009, we had 

no derivative instruments outstanding.  

 

We are also exposed to market risk from changes in the fair value of our pension plan assets.  The loss on our pension plan assets was 

approximately 28% for 2008 and 5% for first quarter 2009.  If our actual return on plan assets continues to be significantly lower than our 8.25% 

expected return assumption, our net periodic pension expense will increase in the future and we will be required to contribute additional funds to 

our pension plan after 2009.  

 

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the computation of fair value of financial instruments.  Actual 

values may differ from those presented if market conditions vary from assumptions used in the fair value calculations.  The analysis above 

incorporates only those risk exposures that existed as of March 31, 2009.  
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Item 4.  

CenturyTel, Inc.  
CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES  

 

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurances that information required to be disclosed by us in 

the reports we file under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is timely recorded, processed, summarized and reported as required.  Our Chief 

Executive Officer, Glen F. Post, III, and our Chief Financial Officer, R. Stewart Ewing, Jr., have evaluated our disclosure controls and procedures 

as of March 31, 2009.  Based on that evaluation, Messrs. Post and Ewing concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures have been effective 

in providing reasonable assurance that they have been timely alerted of material information required to be filed in this report.  Since the date of 

Messrs. Post’s and Ewing’s most recent evaluation, we did not make any change to our internal control over financial reporting that materially 

affected, or that we believe is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.  The design of any system of 

controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events and contingencies, and there can be no assurance that any 

design will succeed in achieving its stated goals.  Because of inherent limitations in any control system, misstatements due to error or fraud could 

occur and not be detected.  
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION  

 

CenturyTel, Inc.  
 

 

 

See Note 10 to the financial statements included in Part I, Item 1, of this report.  

   

 

In August 2007, our board of directors authorized a $750 million share repurchase program which expires on September 30, 2009, unless 

extended by the board.   Through March 31, 2009, we had repurchased approximately 13.2 million shares for $503.9 million under this 

program.  We suspended repurchases in September 2008.  

 

During the first quarter of 2009, we withheld 153,143 shares of stock at an average price of $26.29 per share to pay taxes due upon 

vesting of restricted stock for certain of our employees.  
   

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The following item was reported in the Form 8-K filed January 16, 2009:  

 

Items 8.01 – Other Events.  Memorandum of understanding regarding the settlement of certain litigation relating to the Agreement 

and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 26, 2008,  

entered into among Embarq Corporation, CenturyTel, Inc. and Cajun Acquisition Company.  

   

   

   

Item 1.  Legal Proceedings.  

Item 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds  

Item 6.  Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K  

   A.  Exhibits  

   10.2(a) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the 1983 Restricted Stock Plan and dated as of April 7, 2009, entered into 

between CenturyTel and certain of its employees.  

   10.2(g) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the 2005 Management Incentive Compensation Plan and dated as of February 

26, 2009, entered into between CenturyTel and its  
executive officers as of such date.  

   11  Computations of Earnings Per Share.  

   31.1  Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  

   31.2  Registrant’s Chief Financial Officer certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  

   32  Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 

of 2002.  

   B.  Reports on Form 8-K  
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The following items were reported in the Form 8-K filed January 29, 2009:  

 

Items 7.01, 8.01 and 9.01 – Regulation FD Disclosure, Other Events and Financial Statements and Exhibits.  Press release 

announcing the execution of Amendment No. 1 to Embarq  

Corporation’s Credit Agreement.  

 

The following items were reported in the Form 8-K filed January 29, 2009:  

 

Items 8.01 and 9.01 – Other Events and Financial Statements and Exhibits.  Press release concerning shareholder approval of the 

pending merger between Embarq Corporation  

and CenturyTel, Inc.  

 

The following items were reported in the Form 8-K filed February 19, 2009:  

 

Items 2.02 and 9.01 – Results of Operations and Financial Condition and Financial Statements and Exhibits.  Press release 

announcing fourth quarter 2008 results of operations.  

 

 

SIGNATURE  

 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf 

by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.  

 

 

 

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

    CenturyTel, Inc.  
      
      
Date: May 1, 2009    /s/Neil A. Sweasy                        
    Neil A. Sweasy  
    Vice President and Controller  
      (Principal Accounting Officer) 
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Exhibit 10.2(a) 

   

FORM OF RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT  

UNDER THE CENTURYTEL, INC.  

1983 RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN  

(2009 Grants to non-Section 16 Officers)  

   

This RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of April 7, 2009, by and between CenturyTel, Inc. 

(“CenturyTel”) and ________________ (“Award Recipient”).  

   

WHEREAS, CenturyTel maintains the 1983 Restricted Stock Plan, as it may be amended from time to time (the “Plan”), under which 

the Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) of the Board of Directors of CenturyTel (the “Board”) may, directly or indirectly, among other 

things, grant restricted shares of CenturyTel’s common stock, $1.00 par value per share (the “Common Stock”), to key employees of CenturyTel 

or its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”), subject to such terms, conditions, or restrictions as it may deem appropriate; and  

   

WHEREAS, the chief executive officer of CenturyTel, acting pursuant to powers delegated to him by the Committee under Section 4 

of the Plan, has awarded to the Award Recipient restricted shares of Common Stock on the terms and conditions specified below;  

   

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:  

   

 

1.  

AWARD OF SHARES  

 

Upon the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement, CenturyTel as of the date of this Agreement (the “Grant Date”) hereby 

awards to the Award Recipient ________ restricted shares of Common Stock (“Restricted Stock”) that vest, subject to Sections 2, 3 and 4 hereof, 

in installments as follows:  

   

   

2.  

AWARD RESTRICTIONS ON  

RESTRICTED STOCK  

   

2.1           In addition to the conditions and restrictions provided in the Plan, neither the shares of Restricted Stock nor the right to vote 

the Restricted Stock, to receive dividends thereon or to enjoy any other rights or interests thereunder or hereunder may be sold, assigned, 

donated, transferred, exchanged, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise encumbered prior to vesting.  Subject to the restrictions on transfer 

provided in this Section 2.1, the Award Recipient shall be entitled to all rights of a shareholder of CenturyTel with respect to the Restricted 

Stock, including the right to vote the shares and receive all dividends and other distributions declared thereon.  

 

2.2           If the shares of Restricted Stock have not already vested in accordance with Section 1 above, then, except to the extent 

otherwise provided in the special accelerated vesting schedule set forth in Section 2.2(c), all of the shares of Restricted Stock shall vest and all 

restrictions set forth in Section 2.1 shall lapse on the earlier of:  

 

(a)           the date on which the employment of the Award Recipient terminates as a result of (i) death, (ii) disability within the 

meaning of Section 22(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, (iii) retirement of the Award Recipient on or after attaining the age of 55 

with at least ten years of prior service with the Company, but only if such vesting and lapsing of restrictions is specifically approved by 

Scheduled Vesting Date  Number of Shares of Restricted Stock  
April 7, 2010    

April 7, 2011    

April 7, 2012    

    



the chief executive officer of CenturyTel or his designee, or (iv) the termination of the Award Recipient’s employment by the 

Company, but only if such vesting and lapsing of restrictions is specifically approved by the chief executive officer of CenturyTel or his 

designee (or is otherwise authorized under Section 2.2(c));  

 

(b)           the occurrence of a Change of Control of CenturyTel, as described in Section 9 of the Plan; provided, however, that, 

notwithstanding anything in this Agreement and the Plan to the contrary, (i) neither the execution, delivery, approval or performance of 

the Merger Agreement dated as of October 26, 2008, among Embarq Corporation, CenturyTel and Cajun Acquisition Company (the 

“Merger Agreement”), nor the consummation of the merger of Cajun Acquisition Company into Embarq Corporation (the “Merger”) or 

any other transaction contemplated thereunder, shall be deemed to constitute a Change of Control of CenturyTel and (ii) the shares of 

Restricted Stock will not vest solely as a result of the consummation of the Merger or any other transaction contemplated by the Merger 

Agreement (including as a result of the execution of the Merger Agreement or the approval of the Merger Agreement by the Board of 

Directors of CenturyTel); or  

 

(c)           the date on which, following the consummation of the Merger, the Award Recipient (i) is terminated by the Company 

without Cause (as defined below) or (ii) resigns from the Company with Good Reason (as defined below), in either of which cases, as 

of the last day of employment (the “Termination Date”), the following number of shares of Restricted Stock shall accelerate under the 

following special accelerated vesting schedule:  

 
   

  



   
   
   

2.3           For purposes of Section 2.2, the following terms shall have the following meanings:  

 

(a)           “Cause” shall mean  

 

(i)           conviction of a felony;  

 

(ii)           habitual intoxication during working hours;  

 

(iii)           habitual abuse of or addiction to a controlled dangerous substance; or  

 

(iv)           the willful and continued failure of the Award Recipient to perform substantially the Award Recipient’s 

duties with the Company (other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness or the Award 

Recipient’s termination of employment for Good Reason) for a period of 10 days after a written demand for substantial 

performance is delivered to the Award Recipient by the Board.  

 

(b)           “Good Reason” shall mean either of the following acts of the Company unless the Award Recipient shall otherwise 

expressly agree in writing:  

  
                   
                                  Termination Date            

                                       

           Number of Shares  
                  Accelerated                 

           If the Termination Date is  
           less than 180 days after the  
           Grant Date, 

then .................................................................................................. 

   

       

   
          50% of the shares shall accelerate.  

                        If the Termination Date is  
                        between 180 and 364 days  
                        after the Grant Date, 

then ...................................................................................  

            

   
           the number of shares  
           accelerated shall equal the  
           product of the total number of  
           shares of Restricted Stock  
           multiplied by a fraction, the  
           numerator of which shall equal  
           the number of days worked  
           between the Grant Date and the  
           Termination Date, and the  
           denominator of which shall  
           equal 365 (provided in no event  
           shall such number of shares be  
           less than 50% of the total  
           number of shares of Restricted  
           Stock).  

   
                         If the Termination  Date is  
                        365 days or more after the  
                        Grant Date, 

then ................................................................................................... 

           

   
          100% of the shares shall accelerate.  



 

(i)           Any directive requiring the Award Recipient to be based at any office or location other than the office or 

location at which the Award Recipient is based on the date immediately preceding the consummation of the Merger, excluding 

temporary assignments requested from time to time to support the integration of the business and operations of Embarq 

Corporation with those of the Company in connection with the Merger; or  

 

(ii)           Any reduction in the Award Recipient’s salary.  

 

3.  

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT  

 

All unvested Restricted Stock shall automatically terminate and be forfeited if the employment of the Award Recipient terminates for 

any reason, unless and to the extent otherwise provided in Section 2.2.  

   

4.  

FORFEITURE OF AWARD  

   

4.1           If, at any time during the Award Recipient’s employment by the Company or within 18 months after termination of 

employment, the Award Recipient engages in any activity in competition with any activity of the Company, or inimical, contrary or harmful to 

the interests of the Company, including but not limited to:  (a) conduct relating to the Award Recipient’s employment for which either criminal 

or civil penalties against the Award Recipient may be sought, (b) conduct or activity that results in termination of the Award Recipient’s 

employment for cause, (c) violation of the Company’s policies, including, without limitation, the Company’s insider trading policy and corporate 

compliance program, (d) accepting employment with, acquiring a 5% or more equity or participation interest in, serving as a consultant, advisor, 

director or agent of, directly or indirectly soliciting or recruiting any employee of the Company who was employed at any time during the Award 

Recipient’s tenure with the Company, or otherwise assisting in any other capacity or manner any company or enterprise that is directly or 

indirectly in competition with or acting against the interests of the Company or any of its lines of business (a “competitor”), except for (A) any 

isolated, sporadic accommodation or assistance provided to a competitor, at its request, by the Award Recipient during the Award Recipient’s 

tenure with the Company, but only if provided in the good faith and reasonable belief that such action would benefit the Company by promoting 

good business relations with the competitor and would not harm the Company’s interests in any substantial manner or (B) any other service or 

assistance that is provided at the request or with the written permission of the Company, (e) disclosing or misusing any confidential information 

or material concerning the Company, (f) engaging in, promoting, assisting or otherwise participating in a hostile takeover attempt of the 

Company or any other transaction or proxy contest that could reasonably be expected to result in a Change of Control (as defined in the Plan) not 

approved by the CenturyTel Board of Directors or (g) making any statement or disclosing any information to any customers, suppliers, lessors, 

lessees, licensors, licensees, regulators, employees or others with whom the Company engages in business that is defamatory or derogatory with 

respect to the business, operations, technology, management, or other employees of the Company, or taking any other action that could 

reasonably be expected to injure the Company in its business relationships with any of the foregoing parties or result in any other detrimental 

effect on the Company, then the award of Restricted Stock granted hereunder shall automatically terminate and be forfeited effective on the date 

on which the Award Recipient engages in such activity and (i) all shares of Common Stock acquired by the Award Recipient pursuant to this 

Agreement (or other securities into which such shares have been converted or exchanged) shall be returned to the Company or, if no longer held 

by the Award Recipient, the Award Recipient shall pay to the Company, without interest, all cash, securities or other assets received by the 

Award Recipient upon the sale or transfer of such stock or securities, and (ii) all unvested shares of Restricted Stock shall be forfeited.  

   

4.2           If the Award Recipient owes any amount to the Company under Section 4.1 above, the Award Recipient acknowledges that 

the Company may, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, deduct such amount from any amounts the Company owes the Award 

Recipient from time to time for any reason (including without limitation amounts owed to the Award Recipient as salary, wages, reimbursements 

or other compensation, fringe benefits, retirement benefits or vacation pay).  Whether or not the Company elects to make any such set-off in 

whole or in part, if the Company does not recover by means of set-off the full amount the Award Recipient owes it, the Award Recipient hereby 

agrees to pay immediately the unpaid balance to the Company.  

 

                4.3           The Award Recipient may be released from the Award Recipient’s obligations under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 above only if the 



chief executive officer of CenturyTel determines in his sole discretion that such action is in the best interests of the Company.  

   

5.  

STOCK CERTIFICATES  

 

   

No stock certificates evidencing the Restricted Stock shall be issued by CenturyTel until the lapse of restrictions under the terms 

hereof.  Upon the lapse of restrictions on shares of Restricted Stock, CenturyTel may, in its discretion, issue the vested shares of Restricted Stock 

(either through book-entry issuances or delivery of a stock certificate) in the name of the Award Recipient or his or her nominee, subject to the 

other terms and conditions hereof, including those governing any withholdings of shares under Section 6 below.  Upon receipt of any such stock 

certificate, the Award Recipient is free to hold or dispose of the shares represented by such certificate, subject to (i) applicable securities laws, 

(ii) CenturyTel’s insider trading policy, and (iii) any applicable stock retention policies that CenturyTel may adopt in the future.  

   

6.  

WITHHOLDING TAXES  

 

At the time that all or any portion of the Restricted Stock vests, the Award Recipient must deliver to CenturyTel the amount of income 

tax withholding required by law.  Unless otherwise directed in writing by CenturyTel, the Award Recipient hereby agrees to fully satisfy this tax 

withholding obligation by requesting CenturyTel to withhold from the shares the Award Recipient otherwise would receive hereunder shares of 

Common Stock having a value equal to the minimum amount required to be withheld (as determined under the Plan); provided, however, that to 

prevent the issuance of fractional shares and the under-withholding of taxes, the Award Recipient agrees that the number of shares withheld shall 

be rounded up to the next whole number of shares.  

 

7.  

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS  

 

                Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if, at any time prior to the vesting of the Restricted Stock in accordance 

with Section 1 or 2 hereof, CenturyTel further determines, in its sole discretion, that the listing, registration or qualification (or any updating of 

any such document) of the shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant hereto is necessary on any securities exchange or under any federal or 

state securities or blue sky law, or that the consent or approval of any governmental regulatory body is necessary or desirable as a condition of, 

or in connection with the issuance of shares of Common Stock pursuant thereto, or the removal of any restrictions imposed on such shares, such 

shares of Common Stock shall not be issued, in whole or in part, or the restrictions thereon removed, unless such listing, registration, 

qualification, consent or approval shall have been effected or obtained free of any conditions not acceptable to CenturyTel.  CenturyTel agrees to 

use commercially reasonable efforts to issue all shares of Common Stock issuable hereunder on the terms provided herein.  

   

8.  

NO CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT INTENDED  

 

Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon the Award Recipient any right to continue in the employment of the Company, or to 

interfere in any way with the right of the Company to terminate the Award Recipient’s employment relationship with the Company at any time.  

 

9.  

BINDING EFFECT  

 

Upon being duly executed and delivered by CenturyTel and the Award Recipient, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be 

binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives and successors.  Without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing, whenever the term “Award Recipient” is used in any provision of this Agreement under circumstances where the 

provision appropriately applies to the heirs, executors, administrators or legal representatives to whom this award may be transferred by will or 

by the laws of descent and distribution, the term “Award Recipient” shall be deemed to include such person or persons.  

 



10.  

INCONSISTENT PROVISIONS  

 

                The shares of Restricted Stock granted hereby are subject to the terms, conditions, restrictions and other provisions of the Plan as fully 

as if all such provisions were set forth in their entirety in this Agreement.  If any provision of this Agreement conflicts with a provision of the 

Plan, the Plan provision shall control, except that the provisions of Section 2.2(b) of this Agreement shall prevail over any contrary provisions in 

the Plan.  The Award Recipient acknowledges receipt from CenturyTel of a copy of the Plan and a prospectus summarizing the Plan and further 

acknowledges that the Award Recipient was advised to review such materials prior to entering into this Agreement.  The Award Recipient 

waives the right to claim that the provisions of the Plan are not binding upon the Award Recipient and the Award Recipient’s heirs, executors, 

administrators, legal representatives and successors.  

   

11.  

ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND EXPENSES  

 

Should any party hereto retain counsel for the purpose of enforcing, or preventing the breach of, any provision hereof, including, but not 

limited to, the institution of any action or proceeding in court to enforce any provision hereof, to enjoin a breach of any provision of this 

Agreement, to obtain specific performance of any provision of this Agreement, to obtain monetary or liquidated damages for failure to perform 

any provision of this Agreement, or for a declaration of such parties’ rights or obligations hereunder, or for any other judicial remedy, then the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to be reimbursed by the losing party for all costs and expenses incurred thereby, including, but not limited to, 

attorneys’ fees (including costs of appeal).  

 

12.  

GOVERNING LAW  

 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiana.  

 

13.  

SEVERABILITY  

 

If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall at any time or to any extent 

be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect as written, the Award Recipient and CenturyTel intend for any court construing this 

Agreement to modify or limit such provision so as to render it valid and enforceable to the fullest extent allowed by law.  Any such provision 

that is not susceptible of such reformation shall be ignored so as to not affect any other term or provision hereof, and the remainder of this 

Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid, illegal or 

unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby and each term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforced to the fullest extent 

permitted by law.  

 

14.  

ENTIRE AGREEMENT; MODIFICATION  

 

The Plan and this Agreement contain the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter contained herein and 

may not be modified, except as provided in the Plan, as it may be amended from time to time in the manner provided therein, or in this 

Agreement, as it may be amended from time to time by a written document signed by each of the parties hereto.  Any oral or written agreements, 

representations, warranties, written inducements, or other communications with respect to the subject matter contained herein made prior to the 

execution of the Agreement shall be void and ineffective for all purposes.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered on the day and year first 

above written.  

   
  CENTURYTEL, INC.  



   
  By:  _________________________________  
                                   Glen F. Post, III  
             Chairman and Chief Executive Officer  
    
    
    
    
  ______________________________________  
                                      {Insert name}  
                                  Award Recipient  



Exhibit 10.2(g) 

FORM OF RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT  

UNDER THE CENTURYTEL, INC.  

2005 MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN  

(2009 Grants to Section 16 Officers)  

 

This RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of February 26, 2009, by and between CenturyTel, 

Inc. (“CenturyTel”) and ___________________ (“Award Recipient”).  

 

WHEREAS , CenturyTel maintains the 2005 Management Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), under which the Compensation 

Committee (the “Committee”) of the Board of Directors of CenturyTel (the “Board”) may, directly or indirectly, among other things, grant 

restricted shares of CenturyTel’s common stock, $1.00 par value per share (the “Common Stock”), to key employees of CenturyTel or its 

subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”), subject to such terms, conditions, or restrictions as it may deem appropriate; and  

 

WHEREAS , pursuant to the Plan the Committee has awarded to the Award Recipient restricted shares of Common Stock on the terms 

and conditions specified below;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE , the parties agree as follows:  
   
   

1.  

AWARD OF SHARES  

 

Upon the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement, CenturyTel as of the date of this Agreement (the “Grant Date”) hereby 

awards to the Award Recipient ________ restricted shares of Common Stock (the “Restricted Stock”) that vest, subject to Sections 2, 3 and 4 

hereof, in installments as follows:  
   

   
2.  

AWARD RESTRICTIONS ON  

RESTRICTED STOCK  

 

2.1           In addition to the conditions and restrictions provided in the Plan, neither the shares of Restricted Stock nor the right to vote 

the Restricted Stock, to receive dividends thereon or to enjoy any other rights or interests thereunder or hereunder may be sold, assigned, 

donated, transferred, exchanged, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise encumbered prior to vesting.  Subject to the restrictions on transfer 

provided in this Section 2.1, the Award Recipient shall be entitled to all rights of a shareholder of CenturyTel with respect to the Restricted 

Stock, including the right to vote the shares and receive all dividends and other distributions declared thereon.  

 

2.2           If the shares of Restricted Stock have not already vested in accordance with Section 1 above, then, except to the extent 

otherwise provided in the special accelerated vesting schedule set forth in Section 2.2(c), all of the shares of Restricted Stock shall vest and all 

restrictions set forth in Section 2.1 shall lapse on the earlier of:  

   

(a)           the date on which the employment of the Award Recipient terminates as a result of (i) death, (ii) disability within the 

meaning of Section 22(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, (iii) retirement of the Award Recipient on or after attaining the age of 55 

with at least ten years of prior service with the Company, but only if such vesting and lapsing of restrictions is specifically approved by 

the Committee, or (iv) the termination of the Award Recipient’s employment by the Company, but only if such vesting and lapsing of 

restrictions is specifically approved by the Committee (or is otherwise authorized under Section 2.2(c));  

Scheduled Vesting Date  Number of Shares of Restricted Stock  
February 26, 2010    

February 26, 2011    

February 26, 2012    



 

(b)           the occurrence of a Change of Control of CenturyTel, as described in Section 11.12 of the Plan; provided, however, 

that, notwithstanding anything in this Agreement and the Plan to the contrary, (i) neither the execution, delivery, approval or 

performance of the Merger Agreement dated as of October 26, 2008, among Embarq Corporation, CenturyTel and Cajun Acquisition 

Company (the “Merger Agreement”), nor the consummation of the merger of Cajun Acquisition Company into Embarq Corporation 

(the “Merger”) or any other transaction contemplated thereunder, shall be deemed to constitute a Change of Control of CenturyTel and 

(ii) the shares of Restricted Stock will not vest solely as a result of the consummation of the Merger or any other transaction 

contemplated by the Merger Agreement (including as a result of the execution of the Merger Agreement or the approval of the Merger 

Agreement by the Board of Directors of CenturyTel); or  

 

(c)           the date on which, following the consummation of the Merger, the Award Recipient (i) is terminated by the Company 

without Cause (as defined below) or (ii) resigns from the Company with Good Reason (as defined below), in either of which cases, as 

of the last day of employment (the “Termination Date”), the following number of shares of Restricted Stock shall accelerate under the 

following special accelerated vesting schedule:  

   

   



   

   

   

2.3           For purposes of Section 2.2, the following terms shall have the following meanings:  

   

(a)           “Cause” shall mean:  

 

(i)           conviction of a felony;  

 

(ii)          habitual intoxication during working hours;  

 

(iii)         habitual abuse of or addiction to a controlled dangerous substance; or  

 

(iv)         the willful and continued failure of the Award Recipient to perform substantially the Award Recipient’s 

duties with the Company (other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness or the Award 

Recipient’s termination of employment for Good Reason) for a period of 10 days after a written demand for substantial 

performance is delivered to the Award Recipient by the Board.  

 

(b)           “Good Reason” shall mean either of the following acts of the Company unless the Award Recipient shall otherwise 

                   
                                  Termination Date            

                                       

           Number of Shares  
                  Accelerated                 

           If the Termination Date is  
           less than 180 days after the  
           Grant Date, 

then .................................................................................................. 

   

       

   
          50% of the shares shall accelerate.  

                        If the Termination Date is  
                        between 180 and 364 days  
                        after the Grant Date, 

then ...................................................................................  

            

   
          the number of shares  
          accelerated shall equal the  
          product of the total number of  
          shares of Restricted Stock  
           multiplied by a fraction, the  
          numerator of which shall equal  
          the number of days worked  
          between the Grant Date and the  
          Termination Date, and the  
          denominator of which shall  
          equal 365 (provided in no event  
          shall such number of shares be  
          less than 50% of the total  
          number of shares of Restricted  
          Stock).  

   
                         If the Termination  Date is  
                        365 days or more after the  
                        Grant Date, 

then ................................................................................................... 

           

   
          100% of the shares shall accelerate.  



expressly agree in writing:  

 

(i)           Any directive requiring the Award Recipient to be based at any office or location other than the office or 

location at which the Award Recipient is based on the date immediately preceding the consummation of the Merger, excluding 

temporary assignments requested from time to time to support the integration of the business and operations of Embarq 

Corporation with those of the Company in connection with the Merger; or  

 

(ii)          Any reduction in the Award Recipient’s salary.  

 

3.  

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT  

 

All unvested Restricted Stock shall automatically terminate and be forfeited if the employment of the Award Recipient terminates for 

any reason, unless and to the extent otherwise provided in Section 2.2.  

 

4.  

FORFEITURE OF AWARD  

   

4.1           If, at any time during the Award Recipient’s employment by the Company or within 18 months after termination of 

employment, the Award Recipient engages in any activity in competition with any activity of the Company, or inimical, contrary or harmful to 

the interests of the Company, including but not limited to: (a) conduct relating to the Award Recipient’s employment for which either criminal or 

civil penalties against the Award Recipient may be sought, (b) conduct or activity that results in termination of the Award Recipient’s 

employment for cause, (c) violation of the Company’s policies, including, without limitation, the Company’s insider trading policy and corporate 

compliance program, (d) accepting employment with, acquiring a 5% or more equity or participation interest in, serving as a consultant, advisor, 

director or agent of, directly or indirectly soliciting or recruiting any employee of the Company who was employed at any time during the Award 

Recipient’s tenure with the Company, or otherwise assisting in any other capacity or manner any company or enterprise that is directly or 

indirectly in competition with or acting against the interests of the Company or any of its lines of business (a “competitor”), except for (A) any 

isolated, sporadic accommodation or assistance provided to a competitor, at its request, by the Award Recipient during the Award Recipient’s 

tenure with the Company, but only if provided in the good faith and reasonable belief that such action would benefit the Company by promoting 

good business relations with the competitor and would not harm the Company’s interests in any substantial manner or (B) any other service or 

assistance that is provided at the request or with the written permission of the Company, (e) disclosing or misusing any confidential information 

or material concerning the Company, (f) engaging in, promoting, assisting or otherwise participating in a hostile takeover attempt of the 

Company or any other transaction or proxy contest that could reasonably be expected to result in a Change of Control (as defined in the Plan) not 

approved by the CenturyTel Board of Directors or (g) making any statement or disclosing any information to any customers, suppliers, lessors, 

lessees, licensors, licensees, regulators, employees or others with whom the Company engages in business that is defamatory or derogatory with 

respect to the business, operations, technology, management, or other employees of the Company, or taking any other action that could 

reasonably be expected to injure the Company in its business relationships with any of the foregoing parties or result in any other detrimental 

effect on the Company, then the award of Restricted Stock granted hereunder shall automatically terminate and be forfeited effective on the date 

on which the Award Recipient engages in such activity and (i) all shares of Common Stock acquired by the Award Recipient pursuant to this 

Agreement (or other securities into which such shares have been converted or exchanged) shall be returned to the Company or, if no longer held 

by the Award Recipient, the Award Recipient shall pay to the Company, without interest, all cash, securities or other assets received by the 

Award Recipient upon the sale or transfer of such stock or securities, and (ii) all unvested shares of Restricted Stock shall be forfeited.  

 

4.2           If the Award Recipient owes any amount to the Company under Section 4.1 above, the Award Recipient acknowledges that 

the Company may, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, deduct such amount from any amounts the Company owes the Award 

Recipient from time to time for any reason (including without limitation amounts owed to the Award Recipient as salary, wages, reimbursements 

or other compensation, fringe benefits, retirement benefits or vacation pay).  Whether or not the Company elects to make any such set-off in 

whole or in part, if the Company does not recover by means of set-off the full amount the Award Recipient owes it, the Award Recipient hereby 

agrees to pay immediately the unpaid balance to the Company.  

 



4.3           The Award Recipient may be released from the Award Recipient’s obligations under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 above only if the 

Committee determines in its sole discretion that such action is in the best interests of the Company.  

   

5.  

STOCK CERTIFICATES  

   

No stock certificates evidencing the Restricted Stock shall be issued by CenturyTel until the lapse of restrictions under the terms 

hereof.  Upon the lapse of restrictions on shares of Restricted Stock, CenturyTel may, in its discretion, issue the vested shares of Restricted Stock 

(either through book-entry issuances or delivery of a stock certificate) in the name of the Award Recipient or his or her nominee, subject to the 

other terms and conditions hereof, including those governing any withholdings of shares under Section 6 below.  Upon receipt of any such stock 

certificate, the Award Recipient is free to hold or dispose of the shares represented by such certificate, subject to (i) applicable securities laws, 

(ii) CenturyTel’s insider trading policy, and (iii) any applicable stock retention policies that CenturyTel may adopt in the future.  

 

6.  

WITHHOLDING TAXES  

 

At the time that all or any portion of the Restricted Stock vests, the Award Recipient must deliver to CenturyTel the amount of income 

tax withholding required by law.  Unless otherwise directed in writing by CenturyTel, the Award Recipient hereby agrees to fully satisfy this tax 

withholding obligation by requesting CenturyTel to withhold from the shares the Award Recipient otherwise would receive hereunder shares of 

Common Stock having a value equal to the minimum amount required to be withheld (as determined under the Plan); provided, however, that to 

prevent the issuance of fractional shares and the under-withholding of taxes, the Award Recipient agrees that the number of shares withheld shall 

be rounded up to the next whole number of shares.  

 

7.  

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS  

 

Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if, at any time prior to the vesting of the Restricted Stock in accordance 

with Section 1 or 2 hereof, CenturyTel further determines, in its sole discretion, that the listing, registration or qualification (or any updating of 

any such document) of the shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant hereto is necessary on any securities exchange or under any federal or 

state securities or blue sky law, or that the consent or approval of any governmental regulatory body is necessary or desirable as a condition of, 

or in connection with the issuance of shares of Common Stock pursuant thereto, or the removal of any restrictions imposed on such shares, such 

shares of Common Stock shall not be issued, in whole or in part, or the restrictions thereon removed, unless such listing, registration, 

qualification, consent or approval shall have been effected or obtained free of any conditions not acceptable to CenturyTel.  CenturyTel agrees to 

use commercially reasonable efforts to issue all shares of Common Stock issuable hereunder on the terms provided herein.  

 

8.  

NO CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT INTENDED  

 

Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon the Award Recipient any right to continue in the employment of the Company, or to 

interfere in any way with the right of the Company to terminate the Award Recipient’s employment relationship with the Company at any time.  

   

9.  

BINDING EFFECT  

 

Upon being duly executed and delivered by CenturyTel and the Award Recipient, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be 

binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives and successors.  Without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing, whenever the term “Award Recipient” is used in any provision of this Agreement under circumstances where the 

provision appropriately applies to the heirs, executors, administrators or legal representatives to whom this award may be transferred by will or 

by the laws of descent and distribution, the term “Award Recipient” shall be deemed to include such person or persons.  

 



10.  

INCONSISTENT PROVISIONS  

 

The shares of Restricted Stock granted hereby are subject to the terms, conditions, restrictions and other provisions of the Plan as fully 

as if all such provisions were set forth in their entirety in this Agreement.  If any provision of this Agreement conflicts with a provision of the 

Plan, the Plan provision shall control, except that the provisions of Section 2.2(b) shall prevail over any contrary provisions in the Plan.  The 

Award Recipient acknowledges receipt from CenturyTel of a copy of the Plan and a prospectus summarizing the Plan and further acknowledges 

that the Award Recipient was advised to review such materials prior to entering into this Agreement.  The Award Recipient waives the right to 

claim that the provisions of the Plan are not binding upon the Award Recipient and the Award Recipient’s heirs, executors, administrators, legal 

representatives and successors.  

 

11.  

ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND EXPENSES  

 

Should any party hereto retain counsel for the purpose of enforcing, or preventing the breach of, any provision hereof, including, but not 

limited to, the institution of any action or proceeding in court to enforce any provision hereof, to enjoin a breach of any provision of this 

Agreement, to obtain specific performance of any provision of this Agreement, to obtain monetary or liquidated damages for failure to perform 

any provision of this Agreement, or for a declaration of such parties’ rights or obligations hereunder, or for any other judicial remedy, then the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to be reimbursed by the losing party for all costs and expenses incurred thereby, including, but not limited to, 

attorneys’ fees (including costs of appeal).  

 

12.  

GOVERNING LAW  

 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiana.  

 

13.  

SEVERABILITY  

 

If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall at any time or to any extent 

be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect as written, the Award Recipient and CenturyTel intend for any court construing this 

Agreement to modify or limit such provision so as to render it valid and enforceable to the fullest extent allowed by law.  Any such provision 

that is not susceptible of such reformation shall be ignored so as to not affect any other term or provision hereof, and the remainder of this 

Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid, illegal or 

unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby and each term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforced to the fullest extent 

permitted by law.  

 

14.  

ENTIRE AGREEMENT; MODIFICATION  

 

The Plan and this Agreement contain the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter contained herein and 

may not be modified, except as provided in the Plan, as it may be amended from time to time in the manner provided therein, or in this 

Agreement, as it may be amended from time to time by a written document signed by each of the parties hereto.  Any oral or written agreements, 

representations, warranties, written inducements, or other communications with respect to the subject matter contained herein made prior to the 

execution of the Agreement shall be void and ineffective for all purposes.  

   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered on the day and year first 

above written.  

   
  



CENTURYTEL, INC.  

   
  By:  _________________________________  
                                   Glen F. Post, III  
             Chairman and Chief Executive Officer  
    
    
    
    
  ______________________________________  
                                      {Insert name}  
                                  Award Recipient  



 

Exhibit 11 

CenturyTel, Inc.  

COMPUTATIONS OF EARNINGS PER SHARE  

(UNAUDITED)  
   
   

   
*  The provisions of FSP EITF 03-6-1 have been retrospectively applied to the 2008 information.  

    Three months    

    ended March 31,    

    2009        2008*    

    

(Dollars, except per share 

amounts,  
and shares in thousands )    

                
                
Income (Numerator):                
Net income attributable to CenturyTel, Inc.    $ 67,154       88,760   
Dividends applicable to preferred stock      (3 )     (87 ) 
Earnings applicable to unvested restricted stock      (870 )     (807 ) 
                  
Net income applicable to common stock for computing basic earnings per share      66,281       87,866   
Dividends applicable to preferred stock      3       87   
                  
Net income as adjusted for purposes of computing diluted earnings per share    $ 66,284       87,953   

                  
Shares (Denominator):                  
Weighted average number of shares:                  
     Outstanding during period      100,427       107,116   
     Nonvested restricted stock      (1,301 )     (974 ) 
                  
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during period for computing basic earnings per share      99,126       106,142   
                  
Incremental common shares attributable to dilutive securities:                  
     Shares issuable under convertible securities      13       380   
     Shares issuable under incentive compensation plans      5       153   
                  
Number of shares as adjusted for purposes of computing   diluted earnings per share      99,144       106,675   

                  
Basic earnings per share    $ .67       .83   

                  
Diluted earnings per share    $ .67       .82   



Exhibit 31.1 

 

CERTIFICATIONS  

 

I, Glen F. Post, III, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, certify that:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.  I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of CenturyTel, Inc.;  

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 

make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 

covered by this report;  

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 

in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) 

and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  

a)   designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 

others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  
b)   designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  
c)   evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  
d)   disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most 

recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over 

financial reporting; and  

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, 

to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors:  

a)   all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  
b)   any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal 

control over financial reporting.  

Date:   May 1, 2009  /s/ Glen F. Post, III        
  Glen F. Post, III  
  Chairman of the Board and  
  Chief Executive Officer  



 

Exhibit 31.2 

 

CERTIFICATIONS  

 

I, R. Stewart Ewing, Jr., Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, certify that:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.  I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of CenturyTel, Inc.;  

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 

make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 

covered by this report;  

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 

in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) 

and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  

a)   designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 

others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  
b)   designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  
c)   evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  
d)   disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most 

recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over 

financial reporting; and  

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, 

to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors:  

a)   all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  
b)   any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal 

control over financial reporting.  

Date:    May 1, 2009  /s/ R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.        
  R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.  
  Executive Vice President and  
  Chief Financial Officer  



 

Exhibit 32 

 

CenturyTel, Inc.  

 

May 1, 2009  

 

 

 

Securities and Exchange Commission  

100 F Street, N.E.  

Washington, D.C. 20549  

 

Certification of Contents of Form 10-Q for the quarter ending March 31, 2009  

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  

 

Ladies and Gentlemen:  

 

The undersigned, acting in their capacities as the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of CenturyTel, Inc. (the 

“Company”), certify that the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009 of the Company fully complies with the requirements of Section 

13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and that the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the 

financial condition and results of operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods covered by such report.  

 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the 

Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  

 

Very truly yours,  

 

 

 

 

Re:  CenturyTel, Inc.  

/s/ Glen F. Post, III        /s/ R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.        
 Glen F. Post, III  R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.  
Chairman of the Board and  Executive Vice President and  
Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer  


